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KANE COUNTY REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION NO. 31
JUNE 30, 2005

COMPLIANCE REPORT

SUMMARY

The compliance audit testing performed in this audit was conducted in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards and in accordance with the Illinois State Auditing Act.

AUDITORS® REPORTS

The auditors’ reports on compliance and on internal contrels do not contain scope limitations,
disclaimers, or other significant non-standard language.

SUMMARY OF AUDIT FINDINGS

Number of This Audit  Prior Audit
Audit findings 3 |
Repeated audit findings 1 -
Prior recommendations implemented

or not repeated - 2

Details of audit findings are presented in a separately tabbed report section.

SUMMARY OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

ftem  Page Description Prior Finding Code
No.

FINDINGS (GOVERNMENT AUDITING

STANDARDS)
05-1 12 Controls Over Compliance with Laws and Regulations 04-1
05-2 16  Improper and Incomplete Accounting of On-behalf N/A
Payments of Payroll Costs
FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
(FEDERAL COMPLIANCE)

05-3 19  Quarterly Expenditure Reports not Submitted Timely N/A

8%



KANE COUNTY REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION NO. 31
JUNE 30, 2005

SUMMARY OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (Continued)

Item  Page Description
No.

PRIOR FINDINGS NOT REPEATED
(GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS)
None

PRIOR FINDINGS NOT REPEATED
(FEDERAL COMPLIANCE)
None

EXIT CONFERENCE

The findings and recommendations appearing in this report were discussed with Agency
personnel at an exit conference on December 6, 2005 held at the Kane County Regional
Office of Education No. 31, 210 South Sixth Street, Geneva, Illinois 60134. Representing
the ROE were Clem Mejia, Regional Superintendent, Paul Anderson, Director of Finance,
Phil Morris, Manager of Technology and Vicki Rissingger, Finance Staff. Representing E.
C. Ortiz & Co., LLP were Stella B. Santos, Partner and Leilani N. Rodrigo, Manager.
Responses to the recommendations were provided by Clem Mejia in a letter dated
Januvary 19, 2006.



Financial Presentation Examined

Auditors’ Reports

Findings and Recommendations

Financial Statements

FINANCIAL STATEMENT REPORT

A financial statement audit consists of an andit of an
agency’s financial statements, including an examination of
the underlying books and records, to determine whether
those financial statements are fairly presented in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles.

The financial statement report is comprised of the
following:

A Summary section providing a brief overview of the
financial statement audit.

An Auditors’ Reporls section conlaining statements by the
auditors on the scope and results of their audit, as required
by applicable professional standards.

A Findings & Recommendations section containing
sequentially numbered findings in which the auditors note
any instances of nonconformity by the agency with
applicable laws, rules, regulations, grant agreements, and
other standards governing its conduct that were found by
the anditors in the course of their review. All findings are
discussed with the agency officials during the post audit
process.

Each finding generally contains: a description of the
condition found; a recommendation by the auditors for
corrective action; a response by the agency either accepting
or rejecting the auditors’ finding; and a description of the
agency's plan for addressing the problem.

A Financial Statement section generally consisting of:

e Management's discussion and analysis (MD&A) as
required supplementary information;

* Basic financial statements (entity-wide financial
statemenis, fund financial statements, and notes to the
financial stalements):

* Required supplementary information other than
MD&A.

Additional financial statements may be presented for
agencies with special reporting requirements.

LAOJTH LNAWHALVLS



KANE COUNTY REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION NO. 31

FINANCIAL STATEMENT REPORT

SUMMARY
The audit of the accompanying basic financial statements of the Kane County Regional Office
of Education No. 31 was performed by E. C. Ortiz & Co., LLP.

Based on their audit, the auditors expressed an unqualified opinion on the agency’s basic
financial staterents.
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E.C.ORTIZ & CO.,, LLP

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUMNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Honorable William G. Helland
Auditor General
State of Illinois

As Special Assistant Auditors for the Auditor General, we have audited the accompanying financial
statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of Kane County Regional Office of Education No. 31, as of and
for the year ended June 30, 2005, which collectively comprise the Kane County Regional Office of
Education No. 31°s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the Kane County Regional Office of Education No. 31's
management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our
andit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinions,

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major
fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Kane County Regional Office of Education
No. 31, as of June 30, 2003, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where
applicable, thereof for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Govermment Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated October 28,
2005 on our consideration of the Kane County Regional Office of Education No. 31°s internal control
over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope
of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit.

The Management’s Discussion and Analysis and Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund Schedule of
Funding Progress on pages 29 to 35 and page 66 are not a required part of the basic financial
statements but are supplementary information required by accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted
principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the
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required supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information and express no
opinion on it

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the Kane County Regional Office of Education No. 31’s basic financial
statements. The combining and individual non-major fund financial statements, budgstary
comparison schedules and Schedule of Disbursements to School District Treasurers and Other
Entities are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic
financial statements, The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented for
purposes of additional analysis as required by U. S, Office of Management and Budget Circular A-
133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and is also not a required
part of the basic financial statements. The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial
statements, budgetary comparison schedules, Schedule of Disbursements to School District
Treasurers and Other Entities, and the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards have been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our
opinion, are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a
whole.

E.C Bxfi3 3 G. LLP

Chicago, lilinois
October 28, 2005



E.C.ORTIZ & CO,, LLP

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCQOUNTANTS

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE
AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Henorable William G. Holland
Auditor General
State of Hlinois

As Special Assistant Auditors for the Auditor General, we have audited the financial statements of the
governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining
fund information of the Kane County Regional Office of Education No. 31, as of and for the year
ended June 30, 2003, which collectively comprise the Kane County Regional Office of Education No.
31’s basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated October 28, 2005. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

Internal Control Over Financial Reilorting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Kane County Regional Office of Education
No. 317s internal conirol over financial reporting in order to determine our auditing procedures for the
purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements and not to provide an opinion on the
internal control over financial reporting. However, we noted a certain matter involving the internal
control over financial reporting and its operation that we consider to be a reportable condition.
Reportable conditions involve matters coming to our attention relating to significant deficiencies in
the design or operation of the internal control over financial reporting that, in our judgment, could
adversely affect the Kane County Regional Office of Education No. 31’s ability to record, process,
summarize and report financial data consistent with the assertions of management in the financial
statements. Reportable conditions are described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and
Questioned Costs as item 05-2.

A material weakness is a reportable condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the
internal control components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements
caused by error or fraud in amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements
being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal
course of performing their assigned functions. Our consideration of the internal control over financial
reporting would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control that might be reportable
conditions and, accordingly, would not necessarily disclose all reportable conditions that are also
considered to be material weaknesses. However, we believe none of the reportable conditions
described above is a material weakness.

Compliance and Other Matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Kane County Regional Office of

Education No. 31’s financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements,
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noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial
statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an
objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests
disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards. However, we noted a certain immaterial instance of noncompliance
which is required by the Guidelines to Auditing and Reporting for a Regional Office of Education, to
be reported on the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs as item 05-1.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Auditor General, the General
Assembly, the Legislative Audit Commission, the Governor, agency management, others within the
organization, IHlinois State Board of Education, federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities
and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

E- C. Q‘L]Lr‘b s lo. LLP

Chicago, 1llinois
October 28, 2005



E.C.ORTIZ & CO., LLP

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUMTANTS

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO EACH
MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN
ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133

Honorable William G. Holland
Auditor General
State of Illinois

Compliance

We have audited the compliance of the Kane County Regional Office of Education No. 31 with the
types of compliance requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB)
Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for
the year ended June 30, 2005, The Kane County Regional Office of Education No. 31°s major federal
programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying Schedule of
Findings and Questioned Costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts,
and grants applicable to each of its major federal programs is the responsibility of the Kane County
Regional Office of Education No. 31°s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
the Kane County Regional Office of Education No. 31°s compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-
133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB
Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have
a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a
test basis, evidence about the Kane County Regional Office of Education No. 31°s compliance with
those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does
not provide a legal determination of the Kane County Regional Office of Education No. 31’s
compliance with those requirements,

In our opinion, the Kane County Regional Office of Education No. 31 complied, in all material
respects, with the requirements referred io above that are applicable to each of ils major federal
programs for the year ended June 30, 2005.

Internal Control Over Compliance

The management of the Kane County Regional Office of Education No. 31 is responsible for
establishing and maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to federal programs. In planning and performing our
audit, we considered the Kane County Regional Office of Education No. 31°s internal contro! over
compliance with requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program
in order to-determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on

333 SOUTH DES PLAINES STREET, SUITE 2-N CHICAGO, IL a00661 tel: 312.876.1900 fax: 312.876.1911

9



compliance and to test and report on the internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB
Circular A-133,

Our consideration of the internal control over compliance would not necessarily disclose ail matters
in the internal control that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a reportable
condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not
reduce to a relatively low level the risk that noncompliance with applicable requirements of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grants caused by error or fraud that would be material in relation to a major
federal program being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in
the normal course of performing their assigned functions. We noted no matters involving the internal
control over compliance and its operations that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, we
noted other matters involving internal control over compliance with major program requirements
which are required by the Guidelines to Auditing and Reporting for a Regional Office of Education, to
be reported on the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs as item 05-3.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Auditor General, the General
Assembly, the Legislative Audit Commission, the Governor, agency management, others within the
organization, Illinois State Board of Education, federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities
and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Z. C. @'fd‘l? 3 lo. LLP

Chicagp, [llinois
October 28, 2005
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KANE COUNTY REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION NO. 31
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2005

PartI: Summary of Auditors’ Results

Financial Statements
Type of auditor’s report issued: Unqualified

Internal control over financial reporting:

e Material weakness(es) identified? __Yes X No
e Reportable condition(s) identified that are not
considered to be material weakness(es)? _ X Yes _ Nonereported
» Noncompliance material to financial statements
noted? ___Yes X No
Federal Awards

Internal control over major programs:

¢ Material weakness(es) identified? Yes X No
e Reportable condition(s) identified that are not
considered to be material weakness(es)? Yes X None reported

Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for
major programs: Unqualified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be

reported in accordance with section 510(a) of Circular
A-1337 Yes X No

Identification of major programs:

CFDA Numbers Name of Federal Program or Cluster

84.318X Technology - Enhancing Education - Competitive

84.196A McKinney Education for Homeless Children

84.010A Title I - School Improvement & Accountability

16.585 Youth Home Education

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and type B $300.000
Programs:
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? X Yes No

11



KANE COUNTY REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION NO. 31
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2005

Part II: Findings Related to the Financial Statements

FINDING NO. 05-1 - Controls Over Compliance with Laws and Regulations (Section A. is
Repeated from Finding 04-01)

Criteria/Specific Requirements:

A. The Illinois Administrative Code (23 Ill. Adm. Code 110.115) states that fees for
conferences, workshops, materials and other costs charged for discretionary activities not
required by law or rule are to be determined on a cost-recovery basis. Excess funds
resulting from registrations or request for materials/services beyond the anticipated cost-
recovery basis shall be deposited in an Enterprise Fund to be used solely to reduce the
cost of similar items or to cover costs incurred due to less-than-anticipated registrations
or requests for materials/services.

B. The lllinois School Code 105 ILCS 5/3-14.11 states that the Regional Superintendent
shall examine at least once each year all books, accounts, and vouchers of every school
treasurer in his educational service region, and if he finds any irregularities in them, to
report them at once, in writing, to the trustees in Class II county school units, to the
respective school boards of those school districts which form a part of a Class II county
school unit but which are not subject to the jurisdiction of the trustees of schools of any
township in which any such district is located, or to the respective school boards of the
district in Class I county school units whose duty it shall be to take immediately such
action as the case demands.

This mandate has existed in its current form since at least 1953,
Condition:

A. Kane County Regional Office of Education No. 31 enterprise fund accounts had net assets
of $614,592 as of June 30, 2005. Total revenues and expenditures for fiscal year 2005
amounted to $297,198 and $292,184, respectively. The ROE does not have formal cost-
recovery pricing procedures to ensure that fees charged approximate costs incurred. We
noted in 17 invoice billings that the agreed mark-up with the customers was not
consistently applied. For example, equipment items were purchased by the ROE and sold
to school districts at an agreed mark-up of 3%. Our comparison of sales price per
invoices to school districts and corresponding cost per vendor invoices showed gross
profit rates ranging from 2% to 22%.

12



KANE COUNTY REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION NO. 31
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2005

Part II: Findings Related to the Financial Statements (Continued)

FINDING NO. 05-1 - Controls Over Compliance with Laws and Regulations (Section A. is
Repeated from Finding 04-01) (Continued)

Kane County Regional Office of Education No. 31 is not examining all books, accounts,
and vouchers of every school treasurer in its educational service area at least once each
year. Regicnal Office officials noted that they believe this mandate is outdated and that
they are satisfying the intent of the statute by other reviews they undertake. For example,
the Regional Superintendent signs off on the Annual Financial Reports from the school
districts in his region. In addition, the Regional Office gets a spreadsheet from the
Tllinois State Board of Education (ISBE) that outlines all of the school districts and their
audit exceptions, if any. The Regional Office follows up with school districts having
exceptions and gets the corrective action and forwards it to ISBE.

While these are reviews involving the finances of school treasurers, they are not in the
level of detail required by 105 ILCS 5/3-14.11.

Effect:

A. Failure to comply with Illinois Administrative Code.

B.

The Regional Office of Education No. 31 did not comply with statutory requirements.

Cause:

A,

Kane County Regional Office of Education No. 31’s management stated that fees were
allowed to accumulate and the excess funds were not used to reduce the future costs of
programs due to an uncertainty about funding for these activities on a year-to-year basis.
The ROE has not completed its cost analysis in fiscal year 2005 to develop a formal cost-
recovery pricing methodology and identify programs or items on which to apply the
excess funds. The varying mark-up percentages are due to pricing errors and volume
discounts not considered in the invoice billings. '

Kane County Regional Office of Education No. 31°s management stated that the
procedures currently being performed are deemed sufficient to comply with this mandate.

13



KANE COUNTY REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION NO. 31
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2005

Part II: Findings Related to the Financial Statements (Continued)

FINDING NO. 05-1 - Controls Over Compliance with Laws and Regulations (Section A. is
Repeated from Finding 04-01) (Continued)

Auditor’s Recommendation:

A.

Kane County Regional Office of Education No. 31 should ensure it complies with all
applicable provisions of the Illinois Compiled Statutes and administrative rules. A
formal cost-recovery pricing procedure should be developed and implemented
consistently. The ROE may consider preparing a price list of items/materials available for
sale to ensure prices used in the invoices are correct. The invoices should be reviewed for
accuracy.

Kane County Regional Office of Education No. 31 should comply with the requirements
of 105 ILCS 5/3-14.11. If the Regional Office believes the statutory mandate is obsolete
or otherwise unnecessary, then it should seek legislative action to revise the statute
accordingly.

Management’s Response:

A,

We agree with the recommendations. Cost recovery guidelines were developed during
the 2004-2005 FY and a draft form was discussed by management, We did update our
ROE Contract Form for 2004-2005, but never fully implemented the cost-recovery form
and procedures. As of December of 2005, we have a fully developed cost-recovery form
and procedures in place. We have gone back to all events since July 1 of 2005 to ensure
that a cost-recovery form is utilized and consistently applied for this fiscal year 2005-
2006.

In 1953, there were 102 county superintendents and their duties were a lot less numerous
than today. Few schools had budgets that exceeded $500,000. Under such conditions,
this law probably made sense. During the past 50+ years, various practices have evolved
eliminating the need for this type of monitoring. In the 21% century, all schools have
multi-million dollar budgets that are: 1.) audited annually by professionally certified
outside auditing firms; 2.) audits are filed for public record and inspection; and 3.) this is
tracked through the process by the procedures mentioned above in the section titled
“Condition”. Requiring the ROE’s to do another review would be redundant, costly, and
require the hiring of teams of new staff members in each ROE to carry out the task. The
latter begs the question of which level(s) of government would bear the cost to carry out
this task and how costly might that be to reinstitute the practice?
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KANE COUNTY REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION NO. 31
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2005

Part I1: Findings Related to the Financial Statements (Continued)

FINDING NO. 05-1 - Controls Over Compliance with Laws and Regulations (Section A. is
Repeated from Finding 04-01) (Continued)

We are grateful for the OAG’s assistance in calling this to our collective attention
because it provides the Regional Offices of Education with additional justification to
request that the General Assembly delete this and other obsolete sections from the
statutes. We will seek a legislative solution to this and other obsolete passages.
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KANE COUNTY REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION NO. 31
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2005

Part IT: Findings Related to the Financial Statements (Continued)

FINDING NO. 05-2 - Improper and Incomplete Accounting of On-behalf Payments of
Payroll Costs

Criteria/Specific Requirements:

Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 24 requires employer
governments to recognize revenue and expenditures or expenses for on-behalf payments.
The Statement defines on-behalf payments for fringe benefits and salaries as direct payments
made by one entity (the paying entity) to a third-party recipient for the employees of another,
legally separate entity (the employer entity). The ROE Accounting Manual requires on-
behalf revenues and expenditures to be reported in the financial statements in equal amounts.
In addition, generally accepted accounting principles require proper matching of costs and
revenues.

Condition:

The salaries of the Regional Superintendent and the Associate Regional Superintendent are
paid by the State of Illinois. The salaries of all other employees of the Kane County
Regional Office of Education No. 31 are paid by Kane County. Pension plan contributions
associated with these salaries are also paid either by the State of Illinois or by Kane County.
The Kane County Regional Office of Education No. 31 reimburses Kane County for the
salaries paid as well as the employer contributions made to the Tllinois Municipal Retirement
Fund (IMRF) of direct program personnel and a portion of the administrative and support
staff salaries.

We noted that the ROE determines the administrative and support staff salaries by computing
a monthly clerical average payroll cost and applying that average to a predetermined
percentage by program. The ROE then reimburses the County for a portion of these
computed salaries based on the annual County budget.

We compared the total administrative and support salaries computed by the ROE with the
County payroll reports for fiscal year 2005. Total gross salaries per County payroll reports
for ROE administrative and support personnel for fiscal year 2005 amounted to $401,979.
The ROE reimbursed the County for $180,808 of these salaries. The difference represents the
on-behalf payments made by the County that amounted to $221,171. Of this amount, only
$111,938 was recorded by the ROE as on-behalf revenues and expenditures.
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KANE COUNTY REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION NO. 31
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2005

Part II: Findings Related to the Financial Statements (Continued)

FINDING NO. 05-2 - Improper and Incomplete Accounting of On-behalf Payments of
Payroll Costs (Continued)

We also noted that the ROE recorded the revenues and expenditures in separate fund
accounts instead of the same fund accounts as follows:

Revenues
Fund (Expenditure)
Number Fund Name Amounts *
199309 Regional Program Development $ 111,938
199307 Juvenile Justice Center Administration (55.969)
199317 Kane County Visual Media Cooperative Academy (18,656)
199319 Local Academy (37,313)

* Reflects gross payroll amounts and does not include related employee benefits.

While total revenues equal total expenditures, there is not a proper matching of revenues and
expenses for these on-behalf payments in the same fund. Revenues and expenditures of equal
amounts should be recognized in the same funds.

Effect:

On-behalf revenues and expenditures recognized in the books are understated by $109,233.
The funds credited for revenues and charged for expenditures for the recorded on-behalf
payments presented in the table above are overstated.

Cause:

The Kane County Regional Office of Education No. 31's management stated that this has
been the practice in previous years and on behalf revenues and expenditures in total are still
of equal amounts.

Auditor’s Recommendation:

The Kane County Regional Office of Education No. 31 should recognize on-behalf revenues
and expenditures in equal amounts in the same funds in the financial statements. A
reconciliation of the computed administrative and support payroll costs with the actual
payroll paid by the County should be performed to ensure completeness and accuracy of
amounts recorded.
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KANE COUNTY REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION NO. 31
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2005

Part II: Findings Related to the Financial Statements (Continued)

FINDING NO. 05-2 - Improper and Incomplete Accounting of On-behalf Payments of
Payroll Costs (Continued)

Muanagement's Response:

We agree with the recommendations. Four employees on the Kane County payroll have been
moved to the ROE payroll to more closely equal the payroll to the Kane County budget.
Instead of averages, only actual salaries and benefits will be charged to the programs. Also,
the movement of revenues into the Regional Development Fund and expensing other local
funds has been ended. Now all payroll payments will be made directly to the Kane County
Treasurer. The Payroll accounts will be monitored periodically to assure accuracy and
compliance. In addition, we will investigate the possibility of a software package that could
automate and improve the payroll process since presently the payroll is generated by a Lotus
spreadsheet and entered and recorded manually in to the accounting software.
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KANE COUNTY REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION NO. 31
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2005

Part ITI. Findings and Questioned Costs for Federal Awards

Federal Program Name: Education Technology State Grants

Project Name: Technology - Enhancing Education - Competitive
Project No.: 05-4972-00

CFDA No.: 84.318X

Pass Through Agency: Illinois State Board of Education

Federal Agency: : U. S. Department of Education

Federal Program Name: Education for Homeless Children and Youth
Project Name: McKinney Education for Homeless Children
Project No.: 05-4920-00

CFDA No.: 84.196A

Pass Through Agency: Illinois State Board of Education

Federal Agency: U. S. Department of Education

Federal Program Name: Temporary Assistance for Needy Families

Project Name: Regional Safe Schools - General State Aid (TANF)
Project No.: 05-3001-93

CFDA No.: 93.558

Pass Through Agency: Hlinois State Board of Education

Federal Agency: U. S. Department of Health and Human Services

FINDING NO. 05-3 - Quarterly Expenditure Reports not Submitted Timely
Criteria/Specific Requirements:

The financial and reporting requirements section of the grant agreement states that quarterly
expenditure reports are due (electronically through the ISBE Web Application Security
(TWAS)) by the end of the following month of each State fiscal year quarter.

Condition:

Kane County Regional Office of Education No. 31 did not timely submit the required
quarterly expenditure reports for its grant programs passed through the Illinois State Board of

Education.

During our detailed testing of the grants passed through ISBE, we noted the following
submission dates for the Quarterly Expenditure Reports:
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KANE COUNTY REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION NO. 31
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2005

Part I11. Findings and Questioned Costs for Federal Awards (Continued)

FINDING NO. 05-3 - Quarterly Expenditure Reports not Submitted Timely (Continued)

Regional Safe Schools (Project No, 05-3001-93)

Quarterly Reports Due Date Date Submitted Days delayed
September 30, 2004  October 31,2004  December 7, 2004 37
December 31, 2004 January 31, 2005  February 8, 2005 8
March 31, 2005 April 30, 2005 May 3, 2005 3

June 30, 2005 July 31, 2005 August 2, 2005 2

McKinneyv Education for Homeless Children (Project No. 05-4920-00)

Quarterly Reports Due Date Date Submitted Days delayed
September 30,2004  None required Not applicable * -
December 31, 2004 January 31, 2005  February 1, 2005 i
March 31, 2005 April 30,2005 May 12, 2005 12
June 30, 2005 July 31, 2005 August 4, 2005 4

Technology - Enhancing Education - Competitive (Project No. 05-4972-00)

Quarterly Reports Due Date Date Submitted Days delayed
September 30,2004  None required Not applicable * -
December 31, 2004 January 31, 2005  February 4, 2005 4
March 31, 2005 April 30, 2005 May 3, 2005 3

June 30, 2005 July 31, 2005 August 24, 2005 24

* Funding received only in the second quarter of fiscal year 2005.
Questioned Cosis:
None
Context:

The total expenditures for these programs for fiscal year 2005 were as follows:

Praject No. Amount
05-3001-93 $ 33,706
05-4920-00 341,540
05-4972-00 598,680
Total § 973,926
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KANE COUNTY REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION NO. 31
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2005

Part III. Findings and Questioned Costs for Federal Awards (Continued)

FINDING NO. 05-3 - Quarterly Expenditure Reports not Submitted Timely (Continued)
Effect:

Failure to submit the required quarterly expenditure reports is noncompliance with the terms
of the grant agreement.

Cause:

Kane County Regional Office of Education No. 31 management stated that the delays were
due to new staff being trained as well as staff focusing on a conversion to a new accounting
system.

Auditors’ Recommendations:

Kane County Regional Office of Education No. 31 should comply with all the reporting
requirements of its grant agreements and ensure timely submission of reports. We also
recommend that a calendar of reporting deadlines be compiled and be monitored by a person
independent of the reporting function to ensure compliance.

Management’s Response:

We agree with the recommendations. We have identified administrative reasons why certain
quarterly reports, while submitted correctly, were delayed. Instead of the manager
responsible for a specific grant providing the information to the finance department for
submission, the finance department will now provide the information to the manager, who
will ensure that the quarterly reports are submitted in a timely manner. In addition to sending
reminders to grant managers, the Regional Superintendent or Associate Superintendent will
review each report at least one week prior to the due date to ensure timely submission.
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KANE COUNTY REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION NO. 31
CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN FOR CURRENT YEAR AUDIT FINDINGS
JUNE 30, 2005

FINDING NO. 05-1 - Controls Over Compliance with Laws and Regulations (Section A. is
Repeated from Finding 04-01)

Condition:

A. Kane County Regional Office of Education No. 31 enterprise fund accounts had net assets
of $614,592 as of June 30, 2005. Total revenues and expenditures for fiscal year 2005
amounted to $297,198 and $292,184, respectively. The ROE does not have formal cost-
recovery pricing procedures to ensure that fees charged approximate costs incurred. We
noted in 17 invoice billings that the agreed mark-up with the customers was not
consistently applied. For example, equipment items were purchased by the ROE and sold
to school districts at an agreed mark-up of 3%. Our comparison of sales price per
invoices to school districts and corresponding cost per vendor invoices showed gross
profit rates ranging from 2% to 22%.

B. Kane County Regional Office of Education No. 31 is not examining all books, accourits,
and vouchers of every school treasurer in its educational service area at least once each
year. Regional Office officials noted that they believe this mandate is outdated and that
they are satisfying the intent of the statute by other reviews they undertake. For example,
the Regional Superintendent signs off on the Annual Financial Reports from the school
districts in his region., In addition, the Regional Office gets a spreadsheet from the
Illinois State Board of Education (ISBE) that outlines all of the school districts and their
audit exceptions, if any. The Regional Office follows up with school districts having
exceptions and gets the corrective action and forwards it to ISBE.

While these are reviews involving the finances of school treasurers, they are not in the
level of detail required by 105 ILCS 5/3-14.11.

Plan:

A. Cost recovery guidelines were developed during the 2004-2005 FY and a draft form was
discussed by management. We did update our ROE Contract Form for 2004-2005, but
never fully implemented the cost-recovery form and procedures. As of December of
2005, we have a fully developed cost-recovery form and procedures in place. We have
gone back to all events since July 1 of 2005 to ensure that a cost-recovery form is utilized
and consistently applied for this fiscal year 2005-2006.

B. The Regional Offices of Education will request that the General Assembly delete 105
ILCS 5/3-14.11 from the statutes and will seek a legislative solution to other obsolete
passages.



KANE COUNTY REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION NO. 31
CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN FOR CURRENT YEAR AUDIT FINDINGS
JUNE 30, 2005

FINDING NO. 05-1 - Controls Over Compliance with Laws and Regulations (Section A. is
Repeated from Finding 04-01) (Continued)

Anticipated Date of Completion.

As soon as practical.

Name of Contact Person:

Clem Mejia, Regional Superintendent
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KANE COUNTY REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION NO. 31
CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN FOR CURRENT YEAR AUDIT FINDINGS
JUNE 30, 2005

FINDING NO. 05-2 - Improper and Incomplete Accounting of On-behalf Payments of
Payroll Costs

Condition:

The salaries of the Regional Superintendent and the Associate Regional Superintendent are
paid by the State of Illinois. The salaries of all other employees of the Kane County
Regional Office of Education No. 31 are paid by Kane County. Pension plan contributions
associated with these salaries are also paid either by the State of Illinois or by Kane County.
The Kane County Regional Office of Education No. 31 reimburses Kane County for the
salaries paid as well as the employer contributions made to the Illinois Municipal Retirement
Fund (IMRF) of direct program personnel and a portion of the administrative and support
staff salaries.

We noted that the ROE determines the administrative and support staff salaries by computing
a monthly clerical average payroll cost and applying that average to a predetermined
percentage by program. The ROE then reimburses the County for a portion of these
computed salaries based on the annual County budget.

We compared the total administrative and support salaries computed by the ROE with the
County payroll reports for fiscal year 2005. Total gross salaries per County payroll reports
for ROE administrative and support personnel for fiscal year 2005 amounted to $401,979.
The ROE reimbursed the County for $180,808 of these salaries. The difference represents the
on-behalf payments made by the County that amounted to $221,171. Of this amount, only
$111,938 was recorded by the ROE as on-behalf revenues and expenditures.

We also noted that the ROE recorded the revenues and expenditures in separate fund
accounts instead of the same fund accounts as follows:

Revenues
Fund (Expenditure)
Number Fund Name Amounts *
199309 Regional Program Development § 111,938
199307 Juvenile Justice Center Administration (55,969)
199317 Kane County Visual Media Cooperative Academy (18,656)
199315 Local Academy (37,313)

* Reflects gross payroll amounts and does not include related employee benefits.

While total revenues equal total expenditures, there is not a proper matching of revenues and
expenses for these on-behalf payments in the same fund. Revenues and expenditures of equal
amounts should be recognized in the same funds.
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KANE COUNTY REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION NO. 31
CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN FOR CURRENT YEAR AUDIT FINDINGS
JUNE 340, 2005

FINDING NO. 05-2 - Improper and Incomplete Accounting of On-behalf Payments of
Payroll Costs (Continued)

Plan:

Four employees on the Kane County payroll have been moved to the ROE payroll to
more closely equal the payroll to the Kane County budget.

Instead of averages, only actual salaries and benefits will be charged to the programs.

The movement of revenues into the Regional Development Fund and expensing other
local funds has been ended. Now all payroll payments will be made directly to the Kane
County Treasurer.

The Payroll accounts will be monitored periodically to assure accuracy and compliance.
Presently the payroll is generated by a Lotus spreadsheet and entered and recorded

manually in to the accounting software. We will investigate the possibility of a software
package that could automate and improve the payroll process.

Anticipated Date of Completion:

The inter-fund transfers were ended beginning September 1, 2005 payroll period. The final
movement of employees to the ROE payroll was completed for the payroll period ended
December 15, 2005.

Name of Contact Person.

Paul Anderson, Finance Director
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KANE COUNTY REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION NO. 31
CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN FOR CURRENT YEAR AUDIT FINDINGS
JUNE 30, 2005

FINDING NO. 05-3 - Quarterly Expenditure Reports not Submitted Timely

Condition:

Kane County Regional Office of Education No. 31 did not timely submit the required
quarterly expenditure reports for its grant programs passed through the Illinois State Board of

Education.

During our detailed testing of the grants passed through ISBE, we noted the following
submission dates for the Quarterly Expenditure Reports:

Regional Safe Schools (Project No, 05-3001-93)

Quarterly Reports Due Date Date Submitted Days delaved
September 30, 2004 QOctober 31, 2004 December 7, 2004 37
December 31, 2004 January 31, 2005  February 8, 2005 8
March 31, 2005 April 30, 2005 May 3, 2005 3

June 30, 2005 July 31, 2005 August 2, 2005 2

MeKinney Education for Homeless Children (Project No. 05-4920-00)

Quarterly Reports Due Date Date Submitted Days delayed
September 30, 2004  None required Not applicable * -
December 31, 2004 January 31,2005  February 1, 2005 1
March 31, 2005 April 30, 2005 May 12, 2005 12

June 30, 2005 July 31, 2005 August 4, 2005 4

Technology - Enhancing Education - Competitive (Project No. 05-4972-00

Quarterly Reports Due Date Date Submitted Davs delayed
September 30, 2004  None required Not applicable * —
December 31, 2004 January 31,2005  February 4, 2005 4
March 31, 2005 April 30, 2005 May 3, 2005 3

June 30, 2005 July 31, 2005 August 24, 2005 24

* Funding received only in the second quarter of fiscal year 2005.
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KANE COUNTY REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION NO. 31
CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN FOR CURRENT YEAR AUDIT FINDINGS
JUNE 30, 2005

FINDING NO. 05-3 - Quarterly Expenditure Reports not Submitted Timely (Continued)

Plan:

We have identified administrative reasons why certain quarterly reports, while submitted
correctly, were delayed. Instead of the manager responsible for a specific grant providing the
information to the finance department for submission, the finance department will now
provide the information to the manager, who will ensure that the quarterly reports are
submitted in a timely manner. In addition to sending reminders to grant managers, the

Regional Superintendent or Associate Superintendent will review each report at least one
week prior to the due date to ensure timely submission.

Anticipated Date of Completion:

As soon as possible.

Name of Contact Person:

Clem Mejia, Regional Superintendent or Julie Vallejo, Associate Regional Superintendent
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KANE COUNTY REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION NO. 31
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS

JUNE 30, 2005
Finding Number Condition Current Status
04-1 Noncompliance with State Mandate Repeated as Finding 05-1
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KANE COUNTY REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION NO. 31
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
JUNE 30, 2005

This discussion and analysis of the Kane County Regional Office of Education’s financial
report provides an overview of the financial activities for the year ended June 30, 2005 with
comparative information for the year ended June 30, 2004. The intent of this discussion and
analysis is to look at the ROE’s performance as a whole. Readers should review the financial
statements and any notes to the basic financial statements to assist them in understanding the
role of the ROE, its operations and financial condition.

The purpose of the Kane County Regional Office of Education is to promote quality
education for the citizens of the Kane County Educational Service Region by acting as an
advocate for education, providing leadership, performing regulatory functions as directed by
the Illinois State Board of Education and the Illinois School Code, providing access to
needed resources and disseminating information to school districts, educators and the
community.

Mission

The mission of the Kane County Regional Office of Education is to provide leadership in the
learning community by developing educational resources, facilitating learning and
collaborating with all educational partners.

Education Service Region

The Kane County Regional Office of Education serves over 123,000 students, which includes
112,420 public school students and 10,690 private/parochial students. Our region includes
nine (K-12) unit districts, 2 community college districts, 150 public school buildings and
over 7,000 public/private school teachers.

Highlights

The funds that comprise the budget for the Kane County ROE are derived from various
sources of revenue. About 90% of the funds to operate and maintain services come from
State and Federal grants that are on a July 1 - June 30 fiscal year. The remaining 10% of the
operating budget is obtained from the County of Kane. This does not include the County’s
contribution of facilities, utilities, high-speed internet access and other miscellaneous/salary
costs. The County is on a December 1 - November 30 fiscal year.

The major revenues received from State and Federal sources were the following: Regional
Safe Schools Initiative - $819,276; Enhancing Education Through Technology - $598,682;
Truancy and Optional Education - $339,611; Reading First - $159,474; Title I - School
Improvement & Accountability - $531,369 and McKinney Homeless grant - $341,540.
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KANE COUNTY REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION NO. 31
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
JUNE 30, 2005

Overview/Issues

Again, there were some programs that were required under the Illinois School Code that did
not receive continued funding or were reduced for this fiscal year. Although legislation was
enacted to make some of these programs optional, the expectation from our constituents is
that we continue and even expand the programs. The need does not go away for programs
such as the Illinois Administrator’s Academy and Gifted Education. A major funding source
for Professional Development comes from the ROE/ISC budget which flows through the
Illinois State Board of Education budget. Our ROE school services budget continued to be
reduced since the last fiscal year with the expectation that we maintain or expand services to
our school districts, The need to build and maintain an enterprise fund so that ROE’s can
provide needed services to our schools and personnel in the future, without relying on total
State support is critical. In addition, as funding at the County level gets more competitive
and there are less funds to distribute locally, County Boards are looking to the ROE to set
aside funds from the various grants received to contribute to such items as rent, utilities,
building maintenance and other items, which previously had been provided by the County.
We will be allocating funds next fiscal year to these items where we haven’t been asked to
contribute in past years. We continue to show student growth in our area and continue to
have several new schools built every year in our region. Qur overall budget for next year
will reflect some deduction in new line items and maintenance of present programs at this
year’s level. We will continue to agpressively pursue new grants and opportunities to be able
to expand the services provided by our Office and to provide funding and resources for our
local school districts.

2005 Financial Highlights

e Within the Governmental Funds, the General Fund revenues increased by $135,783
(24%) from $561,894 in FY 2004 to $697,677 in FY 2005. General Fund expenditures
increased by $121,929 (26%) from $478,015 in FY 2004 to $599,944 in FY 2005.

s Within the Governmental Funds, the Special Fund revenue increased by $482,707 (14%)
from $3,399,667 in FY 2004 to $3,882,374 in FY 2005. The Special Fund expenditures
increased by $795,628 (25%) from $3,166,782 in FY 2004 to $3,962,410 in FY 2005.

» The Enterprise Fund revenue increased by $124,308 (72%) from $172,886 in FY 2004 to

$297,194 in FY 2005. The Enterprise Fund expenditures increased by $197,804 (210%)
from $94,379 in FY 2004 to $292,184 in FY 2005.
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KANE COUNTY REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION NO. 31
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
JUNE 30, 2005

Using This Report
This report consists of a series of financial statements and other information, as follows:

e Management's Discussion and Analysis introduces financial statements and provides an
analytical overview of the Regional Office’s financial activities.

e The Government-wide financial statements consist of a Statement of Net Assets and a
Statement of Activities. These provide information about the activities of the Regional
Office of Education as a whole and present an overall view of the Office’s finances.

» Fund financial statements report the Regional Office’s operations in more detail than the
government-wide statements by providing information about the most significant funds.

s Notes to the financial statements provide additional information that is needed for a full
understanding of the data provided in the basic financial statements.

¢ Required supplementary information further explains the financial statements and
supplementary information provides detailed information about the non-major funds.

Government-wide Financial Statements

The Government-wide statements report information about the Regional Office of Education
No. 31 as a whole. The Statement of Net Assets includes all of the assets and liabilities, with
the difference reported as net assets. All of the current year revenues and expenses are
accounted for in the Statement of Activities regardless of when cash is received or paid using
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles and GASB Statement No. 34.

The Government-wide statements report the Office’s net assets and how they have changed.
Net assets- the difference between assets and Habilities- are one way to measure the ROE’s
financial condition.

e Over time, increases or decreases in the net assets can be an indicator of whether
financial position is improving or deteriorating, respectively.

s To assess the Regional Office’s overall financial condition, additional non-financial
factors, such as new laws, rules, regulations, and actions by officials at the state level
need to be considered.

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide detailed information about the Regional Office’s
funds. Funds are accounting devices that allow the tracking of specific sources of funding
and spending on particular programs. Some funds are required by state law. The Regional
Office of Education No. 31 established other funds to control and manage money for
particular purposes.
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KANE COUNTY REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION NO. 31
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
JUNE 30, 2005

The Office has three kinds of funds:

Governmental Funds account for those funds through which most governmental functions
of the Region are financed. These focus on how cash and other financial assets that can
be readily converted to cash flow in and out and the balances left at the year-end that are
available for spending. Consequently, the governmental fund statements provide a
detailed short-term view that helps determine whether there are more or fewer resources
that can be spent in the near future to finance the Office’s programs. The Office’s
Governmental Funds include: the General Fund and the Special Revenue Fund. The
governmental funds required financial statements include a Balance Sheet and a
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances.

Proprietary Funds account for resources from fees charged directly to those entities or
individuals that use its services. Proprietary fund statements provide both long-term and
short-term financial information consistent with the focus provided by government-wide
financial statements but with more detail for major and non-major enterprise funds. The
proprietary funds required financial statements include a Statement of Net Assets,
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets and a Statement of
Cash Flows.

Fiduciary Funds are used to account for assets held by the Regional Office of Education
No. 31 in a trust capacity or as an agent for individuals and private or governmental
organizations. These funds are custodial in nature (assets equal liabilities) and do not
involve measurement of results of operations. The fiduciary funds required financial
statements include a Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets,

Government-Wide Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, net assets may serve when examined over time as one indicator of the
financial position of the Regional Office. The net assets at the end of FY 2005 totaled
$3,488,935. At the end of FY 2004, the net assets were $3,486,783. The analysis that
follows provides a summary of the Office’s net assets as of June 30.
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KANE COUNTY REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION NO. 31
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

JUNE 30, 2005

CONDENSED STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

Current assets

Capital assets, net of depreciation

Total assets

Current liabilities
Total liabilities

Net assets:

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt

Unrestricted
Total net assets

2005 2004
$ 4,621,935 $ 4,262,003
258,122 264,250
4,880,057 4,526,253
1,391,122 1,039,470
1,391,122 1,039,470
258,122 264,250
3,230,813 3,222,533
5 3,488,935 $ 3,486,783

The Regional Office of Education’s net assets increased by $2,152 (less than 1%) from FY
2004. The slight increase occurred primarily in the Governmental Fund as a result of

operational efficiencies.

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Revenues:
Program revenues:
Charges for services

Operating grants and contributions

General revenues:
Local and state sources
On-behalf payments
Interest income
Total revenues
Expenses:

Program Expenses:
Instructional services
Administrative
Professional development

Total Expenses
Change in net assets
Net assets beginning of year
Net assets end of year
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2005 2004
$ 458,165 § 193,923
3,703,754 3,361,800
394,435 290,480
237,192 247,037
83,699 41,207
4,877,245 4,134,447
4,345,717 3,553,765
237,192 247,037
292,184 19,794
4,875,093 3,820,596
2,152 313,851
3,486,783 3,172,932
$ 3,488,935 $ 3,486,783




KANE COUNTY REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION NO. 31
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
JUNE 30, 2005

Financial Analysis of the Kane County Regional Office of Education No. 31 Funds

As previously noted, the Regional Office of Education No. 31 uses fund accounting to ensure
and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. The ROE’s
Governmental Funds reported combined fund balances were $2,630,648.

Governmental Fund Highlights

o The Governor of the State of Illinois line item vetoed a portion of the state financial
support for school services. -

» County support for the Regional Office of Education No. 31 remained at level funding.

o There was an increase in the state aid foundation level to $4,964 per student from $4,810.
This helped to off-set the reduction in the grant dollars provided for the Safe Schools
Program.

Budgetary Highlights

The Regional Office of Education No. 31 annually prepares budgets for several funds which
serve as a guideline for activities and expenditures. The Regional Superintendent annually
prepares an Office Operations Budget and submits it to the County Board for their approval.
The Office Operations Budget covers a fiscal year which runs from December 1 to
November 30. All grant budgets are prepared by the Regional Office of Education No. 31
and submitted to the granting agency for approval. Amendments must be submitted under
guidelines established by the granting agency. Additionally, all Regional Office of
Education funds are reported and included in our annual report. In addition, the Institute
Fund is printed in a newspaper of general circulation in Kane County.

Capital Assets

Regional Office of Education No. 31’s capital assets include office equipment, computers,
audio-visual equipment, and office furniture. The Regional Office of Education No. 31
maintains an inventory of capital assets which have been accumulated over time. For FY
20035, total additions amounted to $100,003 and there were no retirements. Depreciation
expense for FY 2005 was $106,131.

Economic Factors and Next Years’ Budget

At the time these financial statements were prepared and audited, the Regional Office was
aware of several existing circumstances that could affect its financial health in the future:

¢ The state aid foundation level has increased to $6,405 per student.
« The interest rate on investments remains low and will impact interest earned.
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KANE COUNTY REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION NO. 31
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
JUNE 30, 2005

» Most grants have remained near or at previous levels.
 County Board support for Regional Office of Education No. 31 will remain level.

Contacting the Kane County Regional Office

This financial report is designed to provide the Regional Office’s citizens, taxpayers, clients,
and other constituents with a general overview of its finances and to demonstrate the
accountability for the money it receives. If the reader has questions concerning this report or
needs additional financial information, please contact the Regional Superintendent of the
Regional Office of Education No. 31 at 210 South Sixth Street, Geneva, IL 60134. For a
more detailed analysis and explanation of operations and programs, the complete FY 2005
Annual Report is posted on the Kane County ROE website at http://www.kaneroe.org.
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KANE COUNTY REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION NO. 31 EXHIBIT A
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

JUNE 30, 2005
Primary Government
Governmental  Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash $ 3,300,234 § 407,566 3§ 3,707,800
Investments 458,630 163,127 621,757
Accounts receivable 20,970 69,917 90,887
Due from other governmental agencies 201,491 - 201,491
Total current assets 3,981,325 640,610 4,621,935
Noncurrent assets
Capital assets, net 243,695 , 14,427 258,122
TOTAL ASSETS , 4,225,020 655,037 4,880,057
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 502,839 3,338 506,177
Due to other governmental agencies 103,626 37,107 140,733
Deferred revenues 744,212 - 744,212
TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,350,677 40,445 1,391,122
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 243,695 14,427 258,122
Unrestricted 2,630,648 600,165 3,230,813
TOTAL NET ASSETS 2,874,343 % 614,592 § 3,488,935

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement,
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KANE COUNTY REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION NO. 31 EXHIBIT D
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

BALANCE SHEET TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2005

Total fund balances - governmental funds 3 2,630,648
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net
Assets are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not
financial resources and therefore, are not reported in the funds. 243,695

Net assets of governmental activities 5 2,874,343

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

39



‘quaruRiors snyi fo 1aod [paSatuy up a4p spuawas pmaupulf a1 01 sajou ay [

WIDEST % SLLHIE $ 99T SEE) §  VEGPSY §  EFTPYI $  OEFLOY 3
SE6'TIOT S89°v61 1#9°12E ] 629601 68TLIE 11698

£69°L1 060'vE STOE SOE'SY (ov0est) 61L°L6
{t) (&) - - 1 (1)

169'LI P60°PET ST9E S0L°Sh {oo0'cs1) €EL'LE

FEE'TIS Y 09£°68 PLELTY £ER'IE t'ETYE ¥v6'665
TEI'LET - - - - TOI°LET
0SL'ZIS - - - OsLTIE -

168 DEY - 1€ - 911

FLO'ER - 96T - SHE°LY ERI'EL

6ZL'Z8 80 161°% 8£8°0 0189t 785's

665 ITIT TIY'PE S9L'601 Pro'th RZO'CEL'] 0pS'Le!
908°EFE - 00808 - Ere6eT POP'EE
LOF6LI%L - TL8'vTe - 895" 138 LOBTIN
1S0°0BS Y reres 661" 1EY 8EI'L6 £RC°0LTE LL9'LE9
TALLET - - - - TOI'LET
0FS6L 9E9 S79'E 895 1980 05099

06E'1€1 0L8°05 - 0TS vL - -

Fre6ET 06%'EL - 0sT0T - 0105l
$15°019°1 0Ft'E - - EFL P [EE'861
1L6°8sT'T % 21001 $  vASLTY § - §  6LELIB § - $

spunyg spunyg .E_.ﬂE puny vonenpiy punyg 1ampsuy punyg uonuanpy punyj jetauan
B EUHLIIADDY -HON 2210 MG gInox
oL

q LI9IHX4d

€80Z '0E ANNC ‘SAINYTIVE ONNA
F00Z ‘1 AL 'SAONYIVE GNNA

STUNLIANTIXE HIAO (SASN)
SADUNOS DNIDNVNIE HIHLO OGNV
SANNTATY 40 (ADNTIDIIAMD) SSHIXH

(o) ty Sragsumry
(SASN} SAIUNOS DNIDINVNILA HIHLO

STHYNLIONIJXT ¥IAOQ
SANNIATH 40 (ADNTIDIIAA) SSADXT

saan)puadxa [moy,

siuawAed Jjpgag-u0
sjuILIA0E JNI0 0) sjudtudng
SNOALRDISTN
samyrpuadxa jende)
sjpumew pue saddng
S2IIAIDS pasBYIM]
Sjjauag
saumEg
15921435 [BUOLIANIISU]
quaun)
STUNLIANTJXT

SANUaAAl |10 ],

sjuawded Jjeyag-un
1SR
E371ANNE
jesatniasodiay
$30IN0S [B007
§A0IN0S AWS
§02IN0S [I9PA]
SANNIATL

S00Z “0E ANMC AIANT HVIA THL 04
SANA TYINTINNTIAOD

SAINVTVE ONNA NI STONVHD ANV ‘STANLIANTIXT ‘STANTATH 40 INAWILVLS
1€ "ON NOLLYONAT 40 ADIAJ0 TVNOTDTY ALNNOD ANVA

40



KANE COUNTY REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION NO. 31 EXHIBIT F
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2005

Net change in fund balances 5 17,693

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities are
different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the
Statement of Activities the cost of those assets is allocated over
their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense.

Capital outlay 83,293
Depreciation expense (103,848)
Change in net assets of governmental activities 5 (2.862)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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KANE COUNTY REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION NO. 31 EXHIBIT G

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2005
Business Type Activities -
Enterprise Funds
ESC Professional
Development Other Non- Total Proprietary
Loeal 2 Major Funds Funds
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash 5 246,584 & 160,982 § 407,566
Investments 163,127 - 163,127
Accounts receivable 15,068 54,849 69.917
Total current assets 424,779 215,831 640,610
Noncurrent assets _
Capital assets, net 1,371 13,056 14,427
TOTAL ASSETS 426,150 228,887 655,037
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable - 3,338 3,338
Due to other government agencies - 37,107 37,107
TOTAL LIABILITIES - 40,445 40,445
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 1,371 13,056 14,427
Unrestricted 424 779 175,386 600,165
TOTAL NET ASSETS b 426,150 % 188442 § 614,592

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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KANE COUNTY REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION NO. 31 EXHIBIT H
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2005

Business Type Activities -
Enterprise Funds

ESC Professional
Development Other Non-  Total Proprietary
Local 2 Major Funds Funds

OPERATING REVENUES

Local sources 3 116,456 § 176,579 § 293,035
OPERATING EXPENSES

Salaries - 500 500

Benefits - I51 151

Purchased services 135,816 133,025 268,841

Supplies and materials 259 13,585 13,844

Miscellaneous 6,565 - 0,565

Depreciation 274 2,009 2,283

Total operating expenses 142,914 149,270 292,184

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) (26,458) 27,309 851
NONOPERATING REVENUES

Interest 4,159 - 4,159
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE

OPERATING TRANSFERS (22,299) 27,309 5,010
OPERATING TRANSFERS

Transfers in (out) (82,492) 82,490 4
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS (104,791) 109,805 5,014
TOTAL NET ASSETS, JULY 1, 2004 530,941 78,637 609,578
TOTAL NET ASSETS, JUNE 30, 2005 b 426,150 § 188,442 § 614,592

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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KANE COUNTY REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION NO. 31
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 31, 2005

CASH FLOWS FROM GPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Receipts for workshops and services
Payments to suppliers
Net cash used in operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NON CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Cash transfers from other funds
Net cash provided by (used in) noncapital financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of capitnl assets
Net cash used in capital financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Investments
Interest
Net cash used in investing activities

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH
CASH, BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH, END OF YEAR

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net eash used in operating activities:
Operating income (loss)
Adjustments fo reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash
used in operating activities:
Depreciation
Effeets of changes in assets and linbilities:
Accounts receivable
Accounts payable

Net cash used in operating activities

Business Type Activities -
Enterprise Funds

EXHIBIT I

ESC Professional
Development Other Non-  Total Proprietary
Laocal 2 Major Funds Funds
5 101,388 § 121,751 § 223,139
(143,816} (175,591) (319,407}
(42,428) (53,840) (96,268)
(82,492) 82,496 4
(82,492) 82,496 4
(1,645) (15,065) (16,710)
(1,645) (15,065) (16,710)
(163,127) - (163,127)
4,159 - 4,159
{158,968) - (158,968}
(285,533} 13,391 (271,942}
532,117 147,391 679,508
3 246,584 § 160,982 § 407,566
5 (26,458) % 27,308 & 851
274 2,009 2,283
(15,068) (54,828) {69,896)
(1,176) (28,330) {29,506)
b (42,428) § (53,840) % {96,268)

The notes lo the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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KANE COUNTY REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION NO, 31 EXHIBIT J
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

AGENCY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2805
ASSETS
Cash 3 102,038
LIABILITIES
Due to other governmental agencies b 102,038

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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KANE COUNTY REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION NO. 31
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2005

NOTE 1 - SUMMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. Reporting Entity

Kane County Regional Office of Education No. 31 operates under the School Code
(Articles 3 and 3A of Illinois Compiled Statutes, Chapter 105). The Regional
Superintendent of Schools (Superintendent) serves as chief administrative officer of the
Regional Office of Education No. 31 and is elected pursuant to Article 3 of Ilinois
Compiled Statutes, Chapter 105. The principal financial duty of the Superintendent is to
receive and distribute monies due to school districts from general state aid, state
categorical grants, and various other sources.

These are the only activities considered to be part of {(controlled by or dependent on) the
Kane County Regional Office of Education No. 31, as determined by the application of
the criteria set forth in Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 14, The
Financial Reporting Entity. The criteria for inclusion of an entity include, but are not
limited to, legal standing, fiscal dependency, imposition of will and potential for financial
benefit or burden.

Kane County Regional Office of Education No. 31 has determined that no other outside
agency meets any of the above criteria and, therefore, no other agency has been included
as a component unit in the financial statements. Furthermore, the Kane County Regional
Office of Education No. 31 does not consider itself to be a component unit of any other
entity.

B. Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the Statement of Net Assets and the
Statement of Activities) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the
primary government. For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed
from these statements. The statements distinguish between those activities of the ROE
that are governmental in nature and those that are considered business-type activities.
Governmental activities normally are supported by operating grants and contributions,
charges for services and intergovernmental revenues. Business-type activities normally
are supported by amounts assessed or received from local sources for the ROE programs.

The Statement of Activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a
given function or segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that
are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenues include 1)
charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use or directly benefit from goods,
services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment, and 2) grants and
contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a
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KANE COUNTY REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION NO. 31
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2005

particular function or segment. Other items not properly included among program
revenues are reported instead as general revenues. Major individual governmental funds
are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.

Certain 2004 amounts have been reclassified to conform to the 2005 presentation. Visual
Media Cooperative, Business Partners Initiative, Technology, Local Counselors
Academy and Kane County Human Resources Consortium fund activities have been
classified and reported in prior years as special revenue funds and are currently classified
and reported as proprietary funds. Likewise, Criminal Background Investigation fund
activities have been classified and reported in prior years as general fund and are
currently classified and reported as proprietary funds.

. Change in Accounting Principles

Effective July 1, 2004, the Kane County Regional Office of Education No. 31 adopted
GASB Statement No. 40, Deposits and Investment Risk Disclosures, an amendment of
GASB Statement No. 3. This new standard enhances the deposit and investment risk
disclosures by updating the custodial credit risk disclosure requirements of GASB
Statement No. 3 and addressing other common risks, including concentration of credit
risk, interest rate risk and foreign currency risk. The implementation did not have a
significant impact on the Kane County Regional Office of Education No. 31’s financial
statements.

. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation

The financial statements of Kane County Regional Office of Education No. 31 are
prepared in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP). The
Kane County Regional Office of Education No. 31 applies all applicable GASB
pronouncements as well as the following pronouncements issued on or before
November 30, 1989, unless these pronouncements conflict with or contradict GASB
pronouncements: Financial Accounting Standards Board Statements and Interpretations,
Accounting Principles Board Opinions, and Accounting Research Bulletins of the
Committee on Accounting Procedure.

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Proprietary fund financial
statements also report using this same focus and basis of accounting. Revenues are
recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless
of the timing of related cash flows. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as
soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.
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KANE COUNTY REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION NO. 31
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2005

Governmental fund and fiduciary financial statements are reported using the current
financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting.
Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when
susceptible to accrual; ie. when they become both measurable and available.
“Measurable” means the amount of the transaction can be determined and “available”
means collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay
liabilities of the current period. Kane County Regional Office of Education No. 31
considers revenues as available if they are collected within 60 days after year end.
Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred. In applying the
susceptible to accrual concept to intergovernmental revenues, the legal and contractual
requirements of the numerous individual programs are used as guidance.

There are, however, essentially two types of these revenues. In one, monies must be
expended on the specific purpose or project before any amounts will be paid; therefore,
revenues are recognized based upon the expenditures recorded. In the other, monies are
virtually unrestricted as to purpose of expenditure and are usually revocable only for
failure to comply with prescribed compliance requirements. These resources are
reflected as revenues at the time of receipt or earlier if the susceptible to accrual criteria
are met.

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to
December 1, 1985, generally are followed in the government-wide financial statements to
the extent that those standards do not conflict with or contradict the puidance of the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the ROE’s
policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

. Fund Accounting

The accounts of the Kane County Regional Office of Education No. 31 are organized on
the basis of funds, each of which is considered a separate accounting entity. The
operations of each fund are accounted for with a separate set of self-balancing accounts
that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund balance, revenue, and expenditures. The
resources are allocated to and accounted for in individual funds based upon the purposes
for which they are to be spent and the means by which spending activities are controlled.
The various funds are summarized by type in the basic financial statements. The
following summarizes the fund types used:
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KANE COUNTY REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION NO. 31
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
' JUNE 30, 2005

Governmental Fund Types

Governmental Funds are those through which most governmental functions are financed.
The acquisition, use and balances of the expendable financial resources and the related
current liabilities are accounted for through governmental funds.

General Fund - Accounts for resources traditionally associated with government
which are not required, legally or by sound financial management, to be accounted
for in another fund. The general fund is reported as a major governmental fund in the
financial statements. The following are included in the general funds:

ROE/ISC Operations - Accounts for grant monies received for, and payment of,
assisting schools in all areas of school improvement.

Regional Program Development - This program provides for the general
improvement and expansion of education within Kane County Regional Office of
Education No. 31.

Coordinated Supplemental Services - This grant provided for additional funding
to the ROE/ISC program and was administered by the Will County Regional
Office of Education No. 56.

Learning Technology Center - Accounts for resources and payments of
expenditures for Learning Technology HUB program for the purpose of providing
a coordinated, statewide support infrastructure which assists school districts in
planning for, implementing, assessing results and educating school staff in the use
of technology and telecommunications in curricular, instructional and
administrative functions.

Special Revenue Funds - Accounts for the proceeds of specific revenue sources (other
than those accounted for in the Fiduciary Funds) that are legally restricted to
expenditures for specified purposes. The Kane County Regional Office of Education
No. 31 reported the following special revenue funds as major governmental funds.

Institute Fund - Accounts for fees collected for the registration and renewal of
teaching certificates. These fees are used to defray administrative expenses
incidental to teachers’ institutes, workshops or meetings of a professional nature
that are designed to promote the professional growth of teachers or for the
purpose of defraying the expense of any general or special meeting of teachers or
school personnel, which has been approved by the Kane County Regional Office
of Education No. 31.
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KANE COUNTY REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION NO. 31
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2005

Youth Home Education - Funds are used to provide an educational program for
the students at the Juvenile Justice Center.

Education Fund - Accounts for state and federal grant monies received for, and
payment of, expenditures incurred in administering numerous grant awards which
include:

ROE/ISC Technology - Program designed to support learning technology
services to the local school districts.

Federal Special Education - IDEA Flow-Through - Funds used to enhance
the capacity of schools to safely and effectively educate all students by
applying research-based behavior support systems that maximize academic
achievement of student and teacher outcomes.

Regional Safe Schools - This fund is an alternative schooling program for
disruptive youth, creating alternative placement for those students who are
suspended and/or are deemed ineligible.

General State Aid - Accounts for grant monies received for, and payment of
expenditures for regional learning academy supplements.

Truants’ Alternative and Optional Education Program (TAP) - Accounts for

resources and payment of expenditures to provide support service and
evaluate compliance with recommendations to Kane and DeKalb County
truants and their parents. TAP was established under a grant from the State
of Illinois.

Career Awareness and Development Program - Funds provide career
awareness and development training opportunities for elementary and
middle school educators to integrate information on career and career
planning into context of the fundamental learning areas.

Career & Technical Education Improvement - Funds provide career
awareness and development training opportunities for elementary and
middle school educators to integrate information on career and career
planning into context of the fundamental learning areas.
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KANE COUNTY REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION NO. 31
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2005

SOS - Q4 Teacher Quality - System of Support, Quadrant Four is a State
coordination and services grant for improving teacher quality through
professional development. Funds were received by the Professional
Development Alliance and provided to Regional System of Support
Providers (RESPROs).

Title V - Innovative Programs - SEA Projects - Accounts for grant monies
received for, and payment of, expenditures of the Title V - Innovative
Programs - SEA Projects Grant.

Title II - Teacher Quality Leadership - Accounts for grant monies received
for, and payment of, expenditures incurred in providing workshops to
teachers for improvement of instruction in the classroom.

FY 04/FY (5 Title I - Reading First Part B SEA Funds / Reading First
Coordinator/ Reading First Technical Assistant - Funds provide assistance to
school districts in establishing reading programs for students in kindergarten
through third grade that are based on scientifically based reading research.
Reading first also focuses on teacher development and ensuring that all
teachers, including special education teachers, have the tools they need to
effectively help their students learn to read.

Title 1 - School Improvement & Accountability - Accounts for federal
monies teceived for, and payment of, expenditures of the Title I -
Accountability grant. This grant provides school districts with funds to
carry out their school improvement and corrective action responsibilities
under Section 1116(c) of Title I while offering students in schools identified
for improvement and corrective action the opportunity to transfer to another
higher performing public school, including a public charter within the
district.

McKinney Education for Homeless Children - Accounts for grant monies
received for and payment of, expenditures associated with a Federal
program designed to provide counseling and educational support to
homeless children and their families. The programs are funded by a Federal
Stewart B. McKinney Education for Homeless Children and Youth Grant
administered through the Illinois State Board of Education.

Technolopy - FEnhancing Education - Competitive - Funds provide
coordinated support and infrastructure which assists school districts in

planning for, implementing, assessing results and educating school staff in
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KANE COUNTY REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION NO. 31
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2005

the use of technology and telecommunications in curricular, instructional
and administrative functions.

Title TV - Community Service - Accounts for monies received for, and
payment of expenditures for Safe and Drug Free Schools and Communities
Programs. These programs enhance the Nation’s efforts to prevent illegal
use of drugs and violence among, and promote safety and discipline for,
students at all levels in the community.

Other Non-Major Funds - The Kane County Regional Office of Education No. 31
reported the following special revenue funds as non-major governmental funds.

General Education Development (GED) - Accounts for the revenues and
expenditures associated with the processing of applications for the high school
level test of General Education Development and the issuance of diplomas upon
the successful completion of the examination.

Bus Driver Training - Accounts for the revenues received from individuals and
contractors to sponsor instructional training courses for school bus drivers.

Standards Aligned Classroom - Funds are used to offer additional opportunities
for teachers and administrators to gain knowledge and skills in aligning classroom
level curriculum and assessment to the Illinois Learning Standards.

Supervisory - Accounts for travel and other expenditures necessary to perform the
duty of supervising the school districts in Kane County Regional Office of
Education No. 31. This fund includes the balance of the Payroll Clearing Fund.

Local Truancy - Accounts for revenues received from local sources to address the
truancy problem in Kane County.

Proprietary Fund Types

Enterprise Funds - to account for resources from fees charged directly to those entities or
individuals that use its services.

Education Service Center (ESC) Professional Development Local 2 - This fund was
created to maintain control of all revenues and expenses from workshops conducted
by Kane County Regional Office of Education No. 31. The ROE reported this fund
as a major enterprise fund.
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KANE COUNTY REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION NO. 31
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2005

Other Non-major Proprietary Funds - the Kane County Regional Office of Education
No. 31 reported the following proprietary funds as non-major funds:

Visual Media Cooperative - Accounts for funds received and disbursed by the
Superintendent as administrative agent for the Kane County Visual Media
Cooperative. The Visual Media Cooperative is a cooperative of school districts,
which maintains a library of educational films, New and replacement films and
videos are financed from rental charges to users.

Business Partners Initiative - The Business Partners Initiative currently involves a
partnership with Dukane Corporation of St. Charles, Illinois to provide overhead
projectors, LCD projectors and various other multimedia products to schools
throughout Illinois at a cost significantly below retail price.

Technology - A collaboration between the Northeastern Illinois Regional Offices
of Education to provide computer workshops for the teachers of Northern Illinois.
This fund is Jocally funded by Area 1, which is made of the Northeastern Illinois
Regional Offices of Education.

Local Counselors Academy - Accounts for local revenues and disbursements
related to Counselors Academy Program.

Criminal Backeround Investigation - Accounts for the assessments received from
the schoo! districts to pay for the processing of fingerprinting the substitute
teachers and expenditures incurred providing this service to the school districts.

Kane County Human Resources Consortium - Used to account for monies
received for, and partial payment of, expenditures for the Kane County Human
Resources Consortium program.

Fiduciary Fund Types

Fiduciary Funds are used to account for assets held in a trustee capacity or as an agent for
individuals or private or governmental organizations. The Fiduciary Funds include the
following:

Agency Funds - The Agency Funds are used to account for assets held as an agent for
individuals, private organizations, other governmental units and/or other funds.
Agency Funds are custodial in nature (assets equal liabilities) and do not involve
measurement of operations. The Agency Funds include the following:
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Payroll - Accounts for all payroll that is incurred. Any fund that has payroll
remits the money to the Payroll Fund, the Fund then pays the employee. This is
an administrative agent for the ROE’s payroll.

Juvenile Drug Court - The ROE provides fiscal support to the Sixteenth Judicial
Circuit for a program to assist juvenile drug offenders in DeKalb, Kane and
Kendall Counties. The program is funded by a grant from the City of Aurora.

Distributive Fund - The Distributive Fund accounts for state and federal revenues
and assets held by Kane County Regional Office of Education No. 31 as an agent
for the school districts within the jurisdiction. These funds are custodial in nature
and do not involve measurement of the results of operations. The amounts due to
the school districts are equal to the assets.

Miscellaneous Fiscal Adm. IACO - Accounts for registration fee received through
on-line credit card payment for the conferences of the Illinois Association of
County Officials. This association has recently been terminated.

F. Revenues - Exchange and Non-exchange Transactions

Revenue resulting from exchange transactions, in which each party gives and receives
essentially equal value, is recorded on the accrual basis when the exchange takes place.
On a modified accrual basis, revenue is recorded in the fiscal year in which the resources
are measurable and become available.

Non-exchange transactions, in which the ROE receives value without directly giving
value in return, includes grants and donations. On an accrual basis, revenue from grants
and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have
been satisfied. Eligibility requirements include timing requirements, which specify the
year when the resources are required to be used or the fiscal year when use is first
permitted, matching requirements, in which the ROE must provide local resources to be
used for specific purpose, and expenditure requirements, in which the resources are
provided to the ROE on a reimbursement basis. On a modified accrual basis, revenue
from non-exchange transactions must be available before it can be recognized.

G. Cash and Cash Equivalents

For presentation in the financial statements, investments with an original maturity of
three months or less at the time they are purchased by the ROE are considered to be cash
equivalents. Investments with an original maturity of more than three months are
reported as investments.
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H. Capital Assets

IR

Capital assets result from expenditures in the governmental funds. These assets are
reported in the governmental activities column of the government-wide Statement of Net
Assets but are not reported in the fund financial statements.

Capital assets are recorded at cost at time of acquisition or fair value at the date of
donation. The ROE capitalizes items costing $500 or more. Depreciation is calculated on
a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives (five to seven years) of the respective
assets.

Deferred Revenues

The ROE reports unearned deferred revenue in the governmental fund Balance Sheet.
Deferred and unearned revenue arises when potential revenue does not meet both the
measurable and available criteria for recognition in the current period.

Net Assets

Net assets present the difference between assets and liabilities in the Statement of Net
Assets. Net assets of the ROE are classified as follows:

Invested in Capital Assets - represents the ROE’s total investment in capital assets. There
is no outstanding debt related to these assets at this time.

Unrestricted Net Assets - represent resources used for transactions relating to the general
operations of the ROE and may be used at the discretion of management to meet
expenses for any purpose.

Management Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain
reported amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. Actual results could differ
from those estimates.

L. Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

Kane County Regional Office of Education No. 31 did not formally adopt a budget for
the year ended June 30, 2005 and is not legally required to do so. The linois State
Board of Education requires budgets for certain State and Federal programs. These
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budgets were used to prepare the Budgetary Comparison Schedules for the following
programs:

General Fund:
e ROE/ISC Operations

Special Revenue Funds:
e ROE/ISC Technology
Regional Safe Schools
Truants® Alternative and Optional Education Program (TAP)
FY04 Title I - Reading First Part B SEA Funds
McKinney Education for Homeless Children
Technology - Enhancing Education - Competitive
FY(Q5 Title I - Reading First Part B SEA Funds

M. Revenue from Federal and State Grants

Revenues from federal and State grant awards are recorded net of the amount due to the
State for the unused portion of the grant or the amount carried over to the following fiscal
year project. Amounts due to the State or carried over to the following year project are
recorded as liabilities.

NOTE 2 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS

Deposits

The Kane County Regional Office of Education No. 31 utilizes several different bank
accounts for its various activities. The book balance of such accounts is $3,809,838 at
June 30, 2005, while the bank balance was $4,538,118. The difference between the above
amounts primarily represents checks that have been issued but have not yet cleared the bank
as of June 30, 2005.

Custodial credit risk for deposits exists when, in the event of the failure of a depository
financial institution, the ROE’s deposits may not be recovered. Originally, GASB Statement
No. 3 discussed three categories of custodial credit risk as follows:

Category 1 includes deposits covered by depository insurance or collateral held by Kane
County Regional Office of Education No. 31 in its name.
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Category 2 includes deposits covered by collateral held by the financial institutions in a
pledged safekeeping account in the name of Kane County Regional Office of Education
No. 31.

Category 3 includes deposits which are uncollateralized or the collateral is held by the
financial institution trust department but not in the name of Kane County Regional Office
of Education No. 31.

The ROE’s deposits are covered by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) and
by collateral held by the financial institution in the ROE’s name. Although deposit balances
classified under the traditional risk categories of 1 and 2 have been determined under GASB
Statement No. 40 to be exposed to only minimal risk, and, based on this conclusion, the
GASB chose to limit disclosure of custodial credit risk to deposits that meet the definition of
“Category 3", the ROE has decided to include categories 1 and 2 in the discussion. The
following table reflects the ROE’s level of risk as of June 30, 2005:

Bank Balance
Category 1 $ 645,000
Category 2 3,886,862
Category 3 -
Exempt 6,256
Total - b 4,538,118

The exempt funds are those deposited into the Illinois Funds.

Investments

The ROE’s established investment policy follows the State of Illinois Public Funds
[nvestment Act which authorizes the ROE to purchase certain obligations of the U.S.
Treasury, federal agencies and instrumentalities; certificates of deposit and time deposits
covered by Federal depository insurance; commercial paper of U.S. corporations with assets
exceeding $500,000,000, if such paper is rated at the highest classification established by at
least two standard rating services; money market funds and the Illinois Funds.

The ROE has pooled its investments. Investments are stated at fair value. Net income from

investments of pooled funds is allocated and credited to the original sources of the funds. As
of June 30, 2005, the ROE’s investments are certificate of deposits totaling $621,757.
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Interest Rate Risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value
of an investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the
sensitivity of its fair value to changes in market interest rates, The ROE’s policy for
reducing its exposure to the risk is to structure the ROE’s portfolio so that securities mature
to meet the ROE’s cash requirements for ongoing operations. As of June 30, 2005, all the
investments have investment maturities of six to eighteen months.

Credit Risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its
obligations. The ROE’s policy for managing its exposure to the risk is to limit investments
to those allowable by the Illinois Public Funds Investment Act. As of June 30, 2005, the
ROE’s investment in the State investment pool (Illinois Funds) was rated AAAm by
Standard & Poor’s.

Concentration of Credit Risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of a government’s
investment in a single issuer. The ROE’s policy for mitigating the risk is to diversify the
investment portfolio so that the failure of any one issue will not place an undue financial
burden on the ROE. As of June 30, 20035, the ROE’s investments are certificates of deposits
with five local banks.

Custodial Credit Risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of a failure of the
counterparty, the ROE will not be able to recover the value of the investments that are in the
possession of an outside party. Originally, GASB Statement No. 3 discussed three categories
of custodial credit risk as follows:

Category 1 includes investments that are insured or collateralized with securities held by
the Kane County Regional Office of Education No. 31 in its name.

Category 2 includes investments collateralized with securities held by the financial
institution in the name of Kane County Regional Office of Education No. 31.

Category 3 includes uninsured and uncollateralized investments or the collateral is held
by the financial institution trust department but not in the name of Kane County Regional
Office of Education No. 31.

Although investments classified under the traditional risk categories of 1 and 2 have been
determined under GASB Statement No. 40 to be exposed to only minimal risk, and, based on
this conclusion, the GASB chose to limit disclosure of custodial credit risk to investments
that meet the definition of “Category 3%, the ROE has decided to include categories 1 and 2
in the discussion. The ROE does not have a policy for custodial credit risk that further limits
custodial arrangements from what is required by the State of Illinois Public Funds Investment
Act. The following table reflects the ROE’s level of risk as of June 30, 2005:
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Category
Carrying Bank
Amount Balance 1 2 3
Certificates of deposit $ 621,757 $ 621,757 $621,757 $ - |

NOTE 3 - DUE TO/FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTS

The Kane County Regional Office of Education No. 31°s General Fund, Special Revenue
Fund and Agency Fund have funds due to and from various other governmental units which

consist of the following:

Due From Other Governments:

Local School Districts h) 5,400
Illinois State Board of Education 196,091
Total $ 201,491

Due To Other Governments:
Local School Districts $ 124,643
Illinois State Board of Education 16,090
Total $ 140,733

NOTE 4 - CAPITAL ASSETS ACTIVITY

A summary of changes in capital assets for the year ended June 30, 2005 is as follows:

Balance Balance

July 1, 2004 Additions Retirements June 30, 2005
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
Furniture and equipment ¥ 578,751 § 83,293 $ - § 662,044
Less: accumulated depreciation 314,501 103,848 - 418,349
Capital assets, net $ 264,250 ($ 20,555) 3 - § 243,695
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
Equipment $ - 5 16,710 3 - $ 16,710
Less: accumulated depreciation - 2,283 - 2,283
Capital assets, net b - $ 14,427 $ - $ 14,427
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NOTE 5 - DISTRIBUTIVE FUND INTEREST

Interest earned on the Distributive Fund’s cash and investments is periodically distributed to
each participating school district based on the school district’s enrollment.

NOTE 6 - SALARIES AND PENSION PLAN CONTRIBUTIONS

The salaries of the Regional Superintendent and the Associate Regional Superintendent are
paid by the State of Illinois. The salaries of all other employees of the Kane County
Regional Office of Education No. 31 are paid by Kane County. Pension plan contributions
associated with these salaries are also paid either by the State of Illinois or Kane County.

The Kane County Regional Office of Education No. 31 reimburses Kane County for salaries
paid as well as the employer contributions made to the Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund
(IMRF). Pension plan obligations for Kane County Regional Office of Education No. 31
employees (except for visual media personnel) are included in the statistics IMRF provides to
Kane County.

NOTE 7 - RETIREMENT FUND COMMITMENTS

Teachers’ Retirement System of the State of Illinois

The Kane County Regional Office of Education No. 31 participates in the Teachers’
Retirement System of the State of Illinois (TRS). TRS is a cost-sharing multiple-employer
defined benefit pension plan that was created by the Illinois legislature for the benefit of
Ilinois public school teachers’ employed outside the city of Chicago. The Illinois Pension
Code outlines the benefit provisions of TRS, and amendments to the plan can be made only
by legislative action with the governor’s approval. The State of Illinois maintains primary
responsibility for the funding of the plan, but contributions from participating employers and
members are also required. The TRS Board of Trustees is responsible for the System’s
administration.

TRS members include all active nonannuitants who are employed by a TRS-covered
employer to provide services for which teacher certification is required. The active member
contribution rate through June 30, 2005 was 9 percent of their creditable earnings. These
contributions, which may be paid on behalf of employees by employer, are submitted to TRS
by the employer. In addition, virtually all employers and members pay a contribution to the
Teachers’ Health Insurance Security (THIS) Fund, a separate fund in the State Treasury that
is not a part of this retirement plan. The employer THIS Fund contribution was 0.5 percent
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during the year ended June 30, 2005, and the member THIS Fund health insurance
contribution was 0.75 percent.

The State of Illinois makes contributions directly to TRS on behalf of the Kane County
Regional Office of Education No. 31’s TRS-covered employees.

On-Behalf Contributions. The State of Illinois makes employer pension contributions
on behalf of Kane County Regional Office of Education No. 31. For the year ended
June 30, 2005, the State of Illinois contributions were based on 11.76 percent of
creditable earnings, and Kane County Regional Office of Education No. 31, recognized
revenue and expenditures of $38,442 in pension contributions that the State of Illinois
paid directly to TRS. For the years ended June 30, 2004 and June 30, 2003, the State of
Illinois contribution rates as percentages of creditable earnings were 13.98 percent
($51,260) and 13.01 percent ($39,577), respectively.

The Kane County Regional Office of Education No. 31 makes three other types of employer
contributions directly to TRS.

2.2 Formula Contributions. For the years ended June 30, 2005, and June 30, 2004,
employers were required to coniribute 0.58 percent of creditable earnings for the 2.2
formula change. Contributions for the years ended June 30, 2005, and June 30, 2004,
were $1,896 and $2,118, respectively. For the year ended June 30, 2003, part of the
employer’s 2.2 formula contribution (0.58 percent of pay) was reduced as a result of a
new employer THIS Fund contribution for retiree health insurance (0.4 percent of pay).
The remaining 0.18 percent was submitted to TRS. Contributions for the year ended
June 30, 2003 were $796.

Federal and Trust Fund Contributions. When TRS members are paid from federal
and trust funds administered by Kane County Regional Office of Education No. 31, there
is a statutory requirement for Kane County Regional Office of Education No. 31 to pay
an employer pension coniribution from those funds. For the three years ended June 30,
2005, the employer pension contribution was 10.5 percent of salaries paid from those
funds. For the year ended June 30, 2005, salaries totaling $81,692 were paid from federal
and trust funds that required employer contributions of $8,578. For the years ended
June 30, 2004 and June 30, 2003, required Kane County Regional Office of Education
No. 31 contributions were $13,306 and $11,528, respectively.

Early Retirement Option (ERO). Kane County Regional Office of Education No. 31 is
also required to make one-time employer contributions to TRS for members retiring
under the Early Retirement Option (ERO). The payments vary depending on the age and
salary of the member. No member or employer contributions are required if the member
has 34 years of service. The maximum employer payment of 100 percent of the
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member’s highest salary used in the calculation of final average salary is required if the
member is 55 years old. For the year ended June 30, 2005, the Kane County Regional
Office of Education No. 31 paid $0 for employer contributions under the ERO. For the
years ended June 30, 2004 and 2003, there were no salaries that qualified for this plan.

Changes

Public Act 94-0004, which was signed into law on June 1, 2005, contained a number of
provisions affecting employer and active member contributions. Most will not be effective
or impact financial statements until the year ending June 30, 2006. The changes are
summarized below:

Active member contributions. The active member contribution rate will increase from
the current 9.0 percent of creditable earnings to 9.4 percent beginning July 1, 2005. The
increase is to help cover the cost of the new ERO program and will be refunded if the
member does not retire under ERO.

State/federal contributions. Under a policy adopted by the Board of Trustees before
Public Act 94-0004 was enacted, the employer contribution rate for employees paid from
federal funds will be the same as the rate paid by the state. Under Public Act 94-0004,
the state coniribution rate in FY 2006 was reduced to 7.06 percent of pay. Therefore, the
employer contribution rate for employees paid from federal funds in FY 2006 will be
7.06 percent, a decrease from the current 10.50 percent.

New employer contributions.

> Salary increases over 6 percent. If employers grant salary increases in excess of
6 percent that are used in final average salary calculations, the employer will
make a lump-sum contribution to TRS to cover the cost of the portion of the
benefit due to salary increases over 6 percent. Public Act 94-0004 exempts salary
increases granted under contracts and collective bargaining agreements in effect
on June 1, 2005.

> Sick leave in excess of normal allotment. If employers grant sick leave near
retirement in excess of the normal allotment and that sick leave is counted as
service credit, the employer will make a lump-sum contribution to TRS. The act
exempts sick leave granted under contracts and collective bargaining agreements
in effect on June 1, 2005.

Early Retirement Option. In addition to the changes described above, the following
changes were made to ERO:

> Both active member and employer ERQO contribution rates are increased. For

employers, the maximum contribution increases from the current 100 percent of
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the member’s highest salary used in the calculation of final average salary to
117.5 percent.

» The waiver of member and employer ERO contributions when the member has 34
years of service ended with the program that expired June 30, 2005.

> A “Pipeline ERO” program is provided for members to retire under the same
terms as the ERO program that expired June 30, 2005, provided they meet certain
conditions and retire on or before July 1, 2007,

» Public Act 94-0004 provides for a review of the member and employer ERO
contributions every five years to ensure that the program is revenue neufral.

TRS financial information, an explanation of TRS’ benefits, and descriptions of member,
employer and State funding requirements can be found in the TRS Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report for the year ended June 30, 2004, The report for the year ended June 30,
2005, is expected to be available in late 2005. The reports may be obtained by writing to the
Teachers’ Retirement System of the State of llinois, P.O. Box 19253, 2815 West
Washington Street, Springfield, IL 62794-9253. The most current report is also available on
the TRS web site at trs.illinois.gov.

Hlinois Municipal Retirement Fund

The Kane County Regional Office of Education No. 31 defined benefit pension plan, Illinois
Municipal Retirement Fund (IMRF), provides retirement, disability, annual cost of living
adjustments and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. IMRF acts as a common
investment and administrative agent for local governments and schoo! districts in Illinois.
The Illinois Pension Code establishes the benefit provisions of the plan that can only be
amended by the Illinois General Assembly. IMRF issues a publicly available financial report
that includes financial statements and required supplementary information. That report may
be obtained at www.imrf.org/pubs/pubs homepage.htm or by writing to the Ilinois
Municipal Retirement Fund, 2211 York Road, Suite 500, Oak Brook, Illinois 60523.

Employees participating in IMRF are required to contribute 4.50 percent of their annual
covered salary. The member rate is esiablished by State statute. Kane County Regional
Office of Education No. 31 is required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate. The
employer rate for calendar year 2004 was 0.00 % percent of payroll. The employer
contribution requirements are established and may be amended by the IMRF Board of
Trustees. IMRF’s unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being amortized as a level
percentage of projected payroll on a closed basis (overfunded liability amortized on open
basis). The amortization period at December 31, 2004 was 5 years.

For December 31, 2004, Kane County Regional Office of Education No. 31’s annual pension

cost of $0 was equal to Kane County Regional Office of Education No. 31’s required and
actual contributions. The required contribution was determined as part of the December 31,

63



KANE COUNTY REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION NO. 31
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2005

2002 actuarial valuation using the entry age actuarial cost method. The actuarial assumptions
included (a) 7.50 percent investment rate of return (net of administrative expense), (b)
projected salary increases of 4.00% a year, atfributable to inflation, (¢} additional projected
salary increases ranging from 0.4% to 11.6% per year depending on age and service,
attributable to seniority/merit, and (d) post-retirement benefit increases of 3% annually. The
actuarial value of IMRF assets was determined using techniques that smooth the effects of
short-term volatility in the market value of investments over a five-year period with a 15%
corridor.

The assumptions used for the 2004 actuarial valuation were based on the 1999-2001
experience study.

TREND INFORMATION

Actuarial Annual Pension Percentage of Net Pension

Valuation Date Cost (APC) APC Contributed Obligation
12/31/04 $ - 100% $ -
12/31/03 - 100% —
12/31/02 — 100% -
12/31/01 - 100% -
12/31/00 35 100% —
12/31/99 - 100% -
12/31/98 - 100% -
12/31/97 894 100% -
12/31/96 407 100% -
12/31/95 722 100% -

NOTE 8 - ON-BEHALF PAYMENTS

The breakdown of the on-behalf payments by the State of Illinois for the Regional
Superintendent and the Associate Regional Superintendent of the Kane County Regional
Office of Education No. 31 are as follows:

Regional Superintendent’s salary § 88,540
Regional Superintendent’s fringe benefits

(includes State paid insurance) 19,211
Associate Regional Superintendent’s salary 79,686
Associate Regional Superintendent’s fringe benefits

(includes State paid insurance) 11,313
TRS Contributions 38,442

Total ' $ 237,192

On-behalf payments for administrative and support staff salaries by Kane County totaled
$221,171, of which $111,938 was recorded in the basic financial statements.
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NOTE 9 - DEFICIT FUND BALANCE

The following funds have deficit fund balances as of June 30, 2005:

ROE/ISC Operations § 3,356
Federal Special Education - IDEA Flow-Through 597
Regional Safe Schools 10,724
FY 05 Title I - Reading First Part B SEA Funds 559
Title I - School Improvement & Accountability 50,259
Local Counselors Academy 3,338
Total Deficit Fund Balances 5 68,833

Above deficit fund balances are expected to correct themselves through payments from the

State, receipts from local sources and interest income in the next fiscal year.

NOTE 10 - INTERFUND TRANSFERS

The composition of interfund transfers for the year ended June 30, 2005 is as follows:

Transfers-out

Transfers-in

General Fund - Regional Program Development ($14)
Education Fund - ROE/ISC Technology
Education Fund - Regional Safe Schools (13,500)
Education Fund - Truants’ Alternative and Optional

Education Program (TAP)
Education Fund - Bus Driver Training 4
Proprietary Funds - ESC Professional Development

Local 2 (82,492)

Proprietary Funds - Local Counselors Academy
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ILLINOIS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT FUND
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS

Actuarial
Accrued UAALasa
Actuarial Liability Unfunded Percentage
Actuarial Value of (AAL) AAL Funded Covered of Covered
Valuation Assets Entry Age (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
Date {a) (b) {b-a) (a/b) {c) ((b-a)/c)
12/31/04 § 36,912 $ 34,983 (1,929) 105.51% $ - N/A
12/31/03 35,405 32,550 (2,855) 108.77% — N/A
12/31/02 36,844 30,249 (6,595) 121.80% - N/A
12/31/01 36,844 28,200 (8,644) 130.65% - N/A
12/31/00 35,413 26,815 (8,598) 132.06% - N/A
12/31/99 31,535 24,678 (6,857) 127.79% — N/A
12/31/98 27,340 27,750 410 08.52% . - N/A
12/31/97 24,270 24312 42 09.83% — N/A
12/31/96 20,940 15,932 (5,008) 131.43% 6,960 — %
12/31/95 18,797 19,706 909 05.39% 10,403 8.74%

On a market value basis, the actuarial value of assets as of December 31, 2004 is $36,970.
On a market basis, the funded ratio would be 105.68%.

*Digest of Changes

The actuarial assumptions used to determine the actuarial accrued liability for 2004 are based
on the 1999-2001 Experience Study. The principal changes were:

o Fewer members are expected to take refunds early in their career.
s For Repular members, fewer normal and early retirements are expected to occur.
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REVENUES

State sources

Local sources
Interest

On-behalf payments

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES

Salaries

Benefits

Purchased services
Supplies and materials
On-behalf payments

Total expenditures

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES

FUND BALANCE, July 1, 2004

FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2005

KANE COUNTY REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION NO. 31
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

GENERAL FUND ACCOUNTS

FORTHE YEAR ENDED JUNE 34, 2005

SCHEDULE 3
ROE/ISC Operations
Variance
Favorable
Budget Actual {(Unfavorable)
B 198,331 § 198,331 -
- 724 724
- 237,192 237,192
198,331 436,247 237916
66,000 66,133 {133)
21,500 21,002 498
110,531 114,117 (3,586)
300 138 162
- 237,192 (237,192)
198,331 438,582 (240,251)
b - (2,335) (2,335)
(1,021)
5 (3,336)
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KANE COUNTY REGIONAL OFFICE CF EDUCATION NO. 31 SCHEDULE 13
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

AGENCY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2005

Bolance Balance
July 1, June 30,
2004 Additions Deductions 2003
PAYROLL
ASSETS
Cash b 70,751 $ 2,835,189 § 2,820,884 § 85,056
LIABILITIES
Due to other povernmental agencies 3 70,751 % 2,835,189 § 2820884 § 85,056
JUVENILE DRUG COURT
ASSETS
Cash b 27,891 § 96,043 8 106,952 % 16,982
LIABILITIES
Due to other governmental agencies 5 27,891 § 96,043 3 106,952 % 16,982
DISTRIBUTIVE
ASSETS
Cash 5 7,842 & 1,519,177 § 1,527,019 % -
LIABILITIES
Due to other governmental agencies 5 7842 % 1,519,177 § 1,527,019 § -
MISCELLANEOUS FISCAL ADM. -IACO
ASSETS
Cash 5 6,134 % 725§ 6859 § -
LIABILITIES
Due fo other governmental agencies b3 6,134 & 725 § 6,859 § -
TOTAL
ASSETS
Cash b 112618 § 4,451,134 § 4461714 % 102,038
LIABILITIES
Due to other governmental agencies 3 112,618 3 4,451,134 § 4461714 § 102,038
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KANE COUNTY REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION NO. 31

SCHEDULE OF DISBURSEMENTS TO SCHOOL DISTRICT
TREASURERS AND OTHER ENTITIES

DISTRIBUTIVE FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2005

Valley Education for Employment System
Vocational Education - Tech. Prep.
Vocational Education - Career and Technical Education Improvement

Vocational Education - Agriculture Education
Vocational Education - Perkins - IIE

89
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91,740
934,882
28,812
471,585

1,527,019




KANE COUNTY REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION NO. 31
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 38, 2005

SCHEDULE 15

Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor CFDA Puss-Throuph FY 2005
Program/Grant Title MNumber Number Expendilures
DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION
Reading First State Grants
Passed-Through Illinois State Board of Education
Title | - Reading First Part B SEA Funds B4.357A 2005-4337-00 § 46,607
Title I - Reading First Part B SEA Funds 84.357A 2005-4337-02 59,906
Passed-Through Lake County Regional Office of Education No, 34
Title I - Reading First Part B SEA Funds 84.357A 2005-4337-01 23,898
Title I - Reading First Part B SEA Funds 84.357A 2005-4337-04 30,021
160,432
Education for Homeless Children and Youth
Pagsed-Through Tllinois State Board of Education
MeKinney Education for Homeless Children (M) 84.196A 2005-4920-00 341,540
Education Technology State Grants
Possed-Through [llinois State Board of Education
Technology - Enhancing Education - Competitive (M} 84.318X 2004-4972-00 2,541
Technology - Enhancing Education - Competitive (M) 84.318X 2005-4972-00 596,138
598,680
Safe and Drug Free Schools snd Communities Nationa! Program
Passed-Through Illinois State Board of Education
Title 1V - Commumity Service 84.184C 2004-4420-00 22,771
Special Education Grants to States
Passed-Through Northern Suburban Specis! Education District
Federal Special Education - IDEA Flow-Thraugh 84.027 2005-4630-01 117,000
Standards Aligned Classroom Grants
Passed-Through Will County Regional Office of Education No, 56
Standards Aligned Classraam B4.2BA 2005-4829-00 10,018
State Grants for Innovative Program
Passed-Through Will County Regional Office of Education No, 56
Title V - Innovative Programs - SE4 Projects B4.298A 2005-4105-88 9.000
Improving Teacher Quulity Stote Grants
Passed-Through Will County Regional Office of Education No. 56
Title If - Teacher Quality - Leadership B4.367A 2005-4935-88 25,046
Title | Grants to Local Educationnl Agencies
Passed-Through Will County Regionn! Office of Education No, 56
Title I - School Improvement & Acconntability (M) B4.010A 2005-4331-58 510,760
TOTAL DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION 5 1,795,247
DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE
Drug Court Discretionary Grant Progratm
Passed-Through St. Charles School District No, 303
Youth Home Education (M) 16.585 § 427,574
TOTAL DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE 8 427,574
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
Tempaorary Assistance for Needy Families
Pessed-Through Illinois State Board of Education
Regional Safe Schools - General State Aid - Sec, 18-8 (TANF) 93.558 2005-3001-93 $ 33,706
TOTAL DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES § 33,706
TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 5 2,256,527

(M) Program was aedited as a major program

The accompanying potes are an integral part of this schedule.
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KANE COUNTY REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION NO. 31
NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2005

Note 1. Reporting Entity Basis of Presentation and Accounting

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards includes the federal grant
activity of Kane County Regional Office of Education No. 31 and is prepared on the
modified accrual basis of accounting. The information in this schedule is presented in
accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Therefore, some amounts presented in this
schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of the basic
financial statements.

Note 2. Subrecipients

Not Applicable.

Note 3. Description of Major Federal Program

The Technology - Enhancing Education - Competitive was designed to: 1) improve student
academic achievement through the use of technology in schools; 2) assist all students in
becoming technology literate by the end of eighth grade; and 3) encourage the effective
integration of technology with teachers training and curriculum development to establish
successful research-based instructional methods.

McKinney Education for Homeless Children was designed to provide counseling and
educational support to homeless children and their families. The programs are funded by a
Federal Stewart B. McKinney Education for Homeless Children and Youth Grant
administered through the Illinois State Board of Education.

Youth Home Education was designed to provide an educational program for the students at
the Juvenile Justice Center, The program is funded by the U. S. Department of Justice
passed through St. Charles Community Unit School District No. 303.

Title I - School Improvement & Accountability provides school districts with funds to carry
out their school improvement and corrective action responsibilities under Section 1116(c) of
Title I while offering students in schools identified for improvement and corrective action the
opportunity to transfer to another higher performing public school, including a public charter
within the district.
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KANE COUNTY REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION NO. 31
NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2005

Note 4. Non-Cash Assistance

Not Applicable.

Note 5. Amount of Insurance

Not Applicable.

Note 6. Loans or Loan Guarantees Outstanding

Not Applicable.
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